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Particulars Shri Kapil Agarwal 

Director Identification Number 00386298 

Date of Birth (Age) 18.06.1983 

Nationality Indian 

Qualification MBA 

Expertise Experienced in Marketing and Business Management 

Date of Appointment on the Board 23/07/2005 

Relationship with other Directors and Key Managerial 

Personnel 

Son of Mr. J.P. Agarwal and of Mrs. Geeta Devi  Agarwal 

No. of shares held in the Company 375869 

Directorships held in other Companies (excluding 

foreign Companies and Section 8 Companies) as on 

31.03.2020 

1. GALAXY REALVENTURE PRIVATE LIMITED  

   2. GEETANJALI BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED  

3. SURYA BUILDSQUARE PRIVATE LIMITED  

4. BHASKAR BUILDMART PRIVATE LIMITED  

5. PROCLAIM CONSTRUCTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED  

6. GEETANJALI INVESTECH HOLDINGS INDIA PRIVATE 

LIMITED 

7. SEA HORSE CONSTRUCTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED  

8. PACIFIC IRON MANUFACTURING LIMITED  

9. PEARL REALHOME DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED  

10. MOUNT SAROLI INFRASTRUCTURES LIMITED 

11. STEADFAST BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED  

12. PACIFIC LEASING AND RESEARCH LTD  

13. REYANSH INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED  

14. GEETANJALI AVIATION PRIVATE LIMITED  

15.  GEETANJALI INFOSYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED  

Memberships /Chairmanships of committees of other 

public companies (includes only 

Audit Committee and Stakeholders' Relationship 

Committee) as on 31.03.2020 

NIL 

Memberships/ Chairmanships of the Committee of the 

Board of Directors of the Company 

NIL 
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By Order of the Board of Directors
Pacific Industries Limited

J. P. Agarwal
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00386183

Kapil Agarwal 
Executive Director

DIN: 00386298

Place : Udaipur
Date:  05.12.2020

20

INDUSTRIES LIMITED
st

31  Annual Report 2019-20



21

INDUSTRIES LIMITED
st

31  Annual Report 2019-20



 
 

22

INDUSTRIES LIMITED
st

31  Annual Report 2019-20



Sd/-
J. P. Agarwal
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00386183

Sd/-
Kapil Agarwal 
Executive Director
DIN: 00386298

Place : Udaipur
Date: 05.12.2020
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By Order of the Board of Directors
Pacific Industries Limited

J. P. Agarwal
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00386183

Kapil Agarwal 
Executive Director

DIN: 00386298

Place : Udaipur
Date:  05.12.2020
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For Pacific Industries Limited

Sd/-
J.P.Agarwal

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00386183

Date: 05.12.2020
Place: Udaipur
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Certificate on Corporate Governance

To
The Members of
Pacific Industries Limited

1. We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Pacific 
Industries  Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended on March 31, 2020 as stipulated 
in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46 (2) & other applicable 
regulations and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as 
amended ('the SEBI Listing Regulations').

Management Responsibility
2. The preparation of the Corporate Governance Report is the responsibility of the 

Management of the Company including the preparation and maintenance of all 
relevant supporting records and documents. This responsibility also includes the 
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control procedures to ensure the 
compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in the Listing 
Regulations.

Auditors' Responsibility
3. Our responsibility is to provide a reasonable assurance that the Company has complied 

with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations.

4. Our examination was carried out in accordance with the Guidance Note on Certification 
of Corporate Governance and Guidance Manual on Quality of Audit and Attestation 
Services issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. It was limited to 
procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the 
compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an 
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

Opinion
5. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 

given to us, and the representation made by the Management of the company, we are 
of the opinion that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations, as applicable for the year 
ended March 31, 2020, referred to in paragraph 1 above.
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Other matters and Restriction on use

6. This Certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of 
the Company.

7. This Certificate is addressed to and provide to the Members of the Company solely for 
the purpose of enabling it to comply with its obligations under the SEBI Listing 
Regulations and should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. 
Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care or for any 
other purpose or to any other party to whom it is shown or into whose hands it may 
come without our prior consent in writing.

For B K Sharma and Associates
Company Secretaries

BRIJ KISHORE SHARMA
Proprietor

M. No. : FCS - 6206
COP No.: 12636

Place: Jaipur
Date: 4th December, 2020
UDIN: F006206B001404823
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CEO/CFO Compliance Certification

To,
The Board of Directors,
Pacific Industries Limited
Survey No.13, Kempalinganhalli, 
Nelamangala Taluka, 
BANGALORE-562123 
(Karnataka)

A. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 
31st March, 2020 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief :
1. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 

material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;
2. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs 

and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and 
regulations.

B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 
Company during the financial year 2019-2020 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative 
of the Company's code of conduct.

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of 
the Company pertaining to financial reporting and have disclosed to the Auditors and 
the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, 
if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify 
these deficiencies.

D. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee that :
1. There are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during 

the year;
2. There are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the 

same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and
3. There are no instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and 

the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a 
significant role in the Company's internal control system over financial reporting.

Sd/-
Kapil Agarwal

Chief Financial Officer

Date: 05.12.2020
Place: Udaipur
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Declaration regarding compliance by board members and Senior Management Personnel 
with the Company's Code of Conduct

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees including 
the Managing Director and Executive Directors. In addition, the Company has adopted a Code 
of Conduct for its Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. These Codes are 
available on the Company's website.

I confirm that the Company has received from the Senior Management team of the Company 
and the Members of the Board, a declaration of compliance with the code of Conduct as 
applicable to the them in respect of the year ended March 31, 2020.

Date: 05-12-2020
Place: Udaipur

Sd/-
Jagdish Prasad Agarwal

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00386183
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The Management of Pacific Industries Limited is pleased to present the Management 
Discussion and Analysis Report, which lucidly explains the Company's business, industry 
structure, opportunities and concerns, performance of the Company with respect to 
the operations and other relevant information. Management Discussion and Analysis 
forms a part of the compliance report on Corporate Governance.

vBUSINESS OVERVIEW

Pacific Industries Limited has evolved through a simple thought way back in 1989 – the 
thought that the country deserves nothing short of the best when it comes to marbles 
and granites. Glancing at the past trends, makes the Company proud of the fact that it 
has managed to live up to the promise of providing our clients with high quality 
products and services that have constantly surpassed their expectations, and helped us 
create an enviable position over time. Building up on our modest inception, Pacific 
Industries Limited has grown tremendously in terms of quality, volume and variety, 
striving even further for the best. 

Pacific Industries Limited is equipped to deal with a massive capacity to cater marble 
and granite processing needs, providing a wide spectrum of multiple colors to choose 
from.

vINDUSTRY OVERVIEW OF INDIAN ECONOMY AND COMPANY OUTLOOK

India continues to witness economic reforms in terms of tax regime post introduction of 
new corporate tax rates and subsequent amendments thereof. This tax regime, being 
very favorable, is expected to result in improvement bottom line apart from the 
benefits seen from GST which has translated in logistics and faster movements of goods 
on one side and indirect tax reforms on the other side. The consolidation of global 
economy continued during the Financial Year 2019-20 and the global economy ended 
with a lower benchmark with fears of revival of ensuing trade war between the U.S. and 
China. In spite of global turbulence, the financial year concluded on a reasonable 
footing but with an overall negative impact on the industry in varied ways.

The investors' confidence in this volatile environment was reflected by being bullish 
and taking an advantage of the correction phase of capital markets during the year 
under review. And thus, the business growth though subdued is likely to experience 
good flows in the ensuing times. Infrastructure, high end architectures coupled with 
real estate development is a must for maintaining such sustained growth and hence is 
on the highest priority of the Government making it to be the focal point for our 
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economy. Increasing per Capita income resulting due to all round economic high per 
capita spending affects the sale and off take of our products and we hopefully foresee a 
bright future in the coming times. The Attack of Covid19 in the country witnessed 
during the year instilled fear amongst people and its near and subsequent impact needs 
to be seen as is very uncertain. A vaccine once found will help negate the Covid19 fear 
and impact and revive Indian economy which will go a long way in boosting demand.

v

As we write this we enter the third year of the ruling BJP out of its renewed term of 5 
years. We believe the government will continue to take very bold and positive steps 
which shall accelerate the economic growth to higher levels and shall improve ease of 
doing business and boost the economy. The Indian Economy had turned around 
dramatically with the real GDP growth rate of 7%, making India one of the fastest 
growing large economies in the world, but everything got derailed due to the impact of 
Covid-19 and halted the GDP growth. The World still sees india as a promising economy 
and expect it to bounce back as soon as the impact of Covid-19 starts fading. The 
growth in the next financial year is expected to be subdued due to Covid19 impact with 
predictions for a recovery in the FY 21-22 where we could see our early glory returning.

The policies of the Narendra Modi Government to transform India through “MAKE IN 
INDIA” and “AATMA NIRBHAR INDIA” initiatives will further yield results with the 
country emerging as the business hotspot and Foreign Investment destination. we see 
ourselves as well placed and prepared to seize this opportunity as and when it arises for 
the growth of our company.

vINDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT

The macro environment during the year was one of uncertainty and volatility. 
Prolonged monsoons, floods in many key states, and changed policy in Kashmir led to 
disruption and general sombre mood in the economy with no aggressive consumer 
demand. The unprecedented slowdown in Real estate coupled with the credit crisis 
impacted demand for Marble and Granites. As we came to the end of the financial year 
the world and then India was hit by the Covid-19 pandemic, bringing businesses to a 
standstill, across industries and markets. Throughout the year, demand was at real low 
levels and showed a slow declining trend but we see this as temporary phenomena.

Real Estate sector and consumer spending shall soon pick up and demonstrate 
exuberance and witness a complete turnaround with signs of revival in industrial 
activity and rapid growth in global economic performance once there is a treatment for 
Covid19 in place.

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW (2020-21)
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Real estate in India also indicates signs of reviving during this time with the return of 
liquidity in the real estate sector by way of various packages announced by the 
government to provide liquidity s in the recent months. Cash flows of realty players 
improved due to easy finance available at lower rates resulting in renewed 
construction of stalled projects and a few new launches as well. We can quite 
confidently assert that we will witness an exciting new era of development. We are 
fully prepared, equipped and updated to take advantage of the buoyant real estate 
demand which will generate a huge demand for the Company's multiple products.

Emerging out of the volatile economic situations with only minor bruises, the industry is 
poised to enter a growth phase and is on the threshold of a major transformation. In 
terms of demand, Marble and Granite Industry is comfortably placed and should see 
heightened demands in the days to come due to increase in infra and construction 
activities.

Company

Pacific Industries Limited (PIL) is a 100% EOU whose main plant s are located at Village 
Bedla, Udaipur and, Kempalinganhalli, Bangalore. The promoters have been active in 
granite processing and trading for the last 31 years. Over 95% of the turnover comes 
from exports. The company's major exports destinations are USA, Europe, Indonesia, 
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Vietnam, Middle-east countries, etc. The Company is also importing the Granite from 
Italy. 

The Company has been received the “Star Export House” Certification from Ministry of 
Commerce and Industry.

Company is establishing a new Production line for Artificial quartz slab production.

v

There are diverse opportunities in Marble & Granite industry due to large scale 
investment in Infrastructure, modern day architecture, interior designing, 
construction reforms and real estate activities. The constant growth of the Industry has 
escalated the demand for marbles and granites substantially both in domestic and 
international markets.

Further, the World is indeed becoming a Global city. Your company believes that niche 
opportunities exist in the Global arena which, if exploited, would yield positive results. 
The company has accordingly built a business model tapping these opportunities and is 
also aligning its strategies to utilise opportunities in the domestic market. Your 
company deals in special range of Granite & Marbles having exquisite textures, designs 
and colours for which the overseas and domestic markets, both are very demanding. 
Presently, it is one of the few companies which offer all natural stone products under 
one roof to the buyers. The demand for top quality natural stone products is also 
increasing in the domestic market  The availability of manufactured stone products as 
an alternative to natural stones is also likely to affect the performance of the company.

While Globalization presents a great opportunity for your Company to grow, 
protectionism is posing as a major threat. While your Company predicted the market 
trend in the space of natural stone products well in advance and to tap into the 
opportunity, invested handsomely in its facility for manufactured stone products of 
Quartz, some resistance was faced at the macro economic policy level. Your Company 
started the export of the Quartz product from 25th June 2019 primarily to USA market 
and built from strength to strength for next 3 months. However, in the month of 
October 2019, the federal government of the USA imposed an anti-dumping duty on the 
said products exported from India. As a result your Company could not export the 
Quartz manufactured products for the period October  2019 to February 2020. In the 
month of February 2020, some relief in the matter was received which made the export 
of Quartz manufactured products from India viable again. As a result the new Quartz 
unit showed un-favorable results for the FY 2019-20, owing to the upfront fixed cost 
incurred by your Company which inter-alia include depreciation related to the heavy 

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS
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investment in establishment of plant & machinery, high manpower cost including the 
cost of highly skilled managers and labor, interest payments, electricity and 
maintenance charges. Indian export of quartz continue to be sold at share price and we 
are confident-export to US will remain viable. With the change in global political 
landscape your Company is hopeful that the worst is behind us and your Company will 
reclaim the path of growth from herein onwards. 

Your Company has the necessary expertise and flexibility to quickly adapt to the 
changing market condition and capture the growth in sales leading to growth for the 
Company.

vFUTURE OUTLOOK

India's economy is well placed to grow at a robust pace over the next five years owing to 
strong domestic consumption and increase in government spending on infrastructure. 
The implementation analysis and review of Goods & Service Tax (GST) mechanism will 
further simplify the supply chain and improve the operating environment and will act 
as an additional driver of consolidation at all levels market.

The Company is alert and in touch with the ground realities of the business dynamics 
and is confident of increasing its market share in all the spheres emerging as a leader in 
its segment. The overall business outlook for the Company is promising with 
improvement in the economic environment. Efforts towards optimisation and higher 
operational efficiencies are continuing. 

The Company examines the possibilities of expansion and shall make investments when 
attractive opportunities arise.

vTHREATS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The current economic environment, in combination with significant growth ambitions 
of the Company, carries with it an evolving set of risks. Your Company recognizes that 
these risks need to be managed to protect customers, employees, shareholders and 
other stakeholders to achieve our business objectives. In line with this, your Company 
has put in place a detailed Risk Management Policy which identifies the various types of 
risks at all levels of the Company. Early risk identification along with appropriate 
measures has enabled the Company to mitigate all threats which may arise from time 
to time. Also, the possibility of occurrence of the risk event and the magnitude of their 
consequences on the organization is determined and used to prioritize risk 
management.
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vINTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has a sound internal control system, which ensures that (a) its financial 
reports are reliable, (b) its operations are effective and efficient, and (c) its activities 
comply with applicable laws and regulations. The internal control systems are further 
supplemented by internal audit carried out by an independent Chartered Accountant 
and periodical review by the Management. The Internal Audit process is designed to 
review the adequacy of internal control checks in the system and covers all the 
significant areas of the Company's operations.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors reviews the adequacy and effectiveness 
of the internal control systems and tracks the implementation of corrective actions. 
Significant audit observations and corrective actions taken by the Management are 
presented to the Audit Committee. To maintain its objectivity and independence, the 
Internal Audit reports are submitted to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. Audit 
Committee plays a key role in providing assurance to the Board of Directors.

vCSR ACTIVITIES

Your Company believes that as a responsible corporate citizen, it must address the 
needs of underprivileged and committed to serving them. The Company is keen to 
fulfill its social responsibility by being actively involved in a variety of public services 
projects. We encourage collaboration with various NGOs to support in CSR activities at 
group level. 

vHUMAN RESOURCES

The Company believes in making the optimum utilization of all the available resources, 
to achieve this, human power is highly important and thus the Company time over has 
been taking newer and effective initiatives for improving the human resource strength 
and creating a conducive and healthy work atmosphere.

The Company consider its Human Resource as the most valuable resource which has to 
be nurtured well and equipped to meet the challenges posed by the dynamics of 
business developments. The Company continuously provide training to its employees 
both in-house as well as through reputed Institutes. The staffs are highly motivated due 
to good work culture, training, remuneration packages and the values, which the 
Company maintains. The Board of Directors would like to record their appreciation of 
the efficient and loyal service rendered by the Company's employees.
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vDISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL 
PERFORMANCE. 

The Company achieved Revenues from Operations and Other Income (gross) of  
10,428.40 lakhs during the financial year ended 31st March, 2020,. The profit after tax 
12.07 Lakhs during the year. The Management is confident of rebound in the economy 
and expect growth coming back in the ensuing years.

vCAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

Statement in this Management's Discussion and Analysis detailing the Company's 
objectives, projections, estimates, estimates, expectations or predictions are 
“forward-looking statements” within the meaning of applicable securities laws and 
regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied. 
Important factors that could make a difference to the Company's operations include 
global and Indian demand-supply conditions, finished goods prices, feedstock 
availability and prices, cyclical demand and pricing in the Company's principal 
markets, changes in Government regulations, tax regimes, economic developments 
within India and the countries within which the Company conducts business and other 
factors such as litigationand labour negotiations. 

Place: Udaipur
Date: 05.12.2020

By Order of the Board
Pacific Industries Ltd.

Sd/-
J.P. Agarwal

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00386183
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,
The Members of Pacific Industries Limited

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the 
Directors PACIFIC INDUSTRIES LIMITED having CIN L14101KA1989PLC062041 and having registered 
office at Survey No.13, N.H.48, Kempalinganhalli, Nelamangala Taluka Bangalore-562123 (Karnataka) 
(hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of 
issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 
10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations,2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors 
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and 
explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, We hereby certify that none of the 
Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31stMarch, 
2020 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of the 
company by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other 
Statutory Authority

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
based on my verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs 
of the Company. 
For B K Sharma & Associates
Company Secretaries

[BRIJ KISHORE SHARMA]
Proprietor
M. No. : FCS - 6206
COP No.: 12636
UDIN:F006206B001217944
PLACE:   Jaipur
DATE:  12th November, 2020
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Independent Auditor's Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

To 
The Members of 
PACIFIC INDUSTRIES LIMITED,

Report on the Standalone Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of Pacific Industries 
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the Statement 
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Change in Equity and 
Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(hereinafter referred to as “Standalone Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us“except 
for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section” of our report, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2020, and 
profit (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended 
on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
Refer Note No. 38 of Notes on standalone Ind AS Financial Statements regarding confirmation & 
reconciliation of various Debit and Credit balances appearing under various heads & non-provision 
of exchange fluctuation w.r.t certain old balances. Final reconciliations/confirmations of the same 
may affect our disclosure.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of 
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter Paragraph
We invite attention to Note No-43 to the financial statements regarding uncertainties associated with 
the COVID-19 pandemic and impact assessment made by the company on its business and financial 
statements for the year ended 31st March 2020, the said assessment made by the management is highly 
dependent upon how the circumstances evolve in subsequent periods.
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Our Opinion is not modified on the above matter.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters ('KAM') are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Other Information
The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The 
other information comprises the information included in the Company's annual report, but does not 
include the standalone financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. These reports are 
expected to be made available to us after the date of this audit report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge.

Management's Responsibility for the standalone Financial Statements
The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, state of affairs, profit 
(including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the  Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules,2015 as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets 
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible 
for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

�Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.

�Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.

�Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

�Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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�Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the 

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually 
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 
the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and 
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; 
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period 
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law 
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication.

Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in 
the Annexure I a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to 
the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit. 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the books of account.
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d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 
2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as 
on 31 March 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the 
Act. 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, 
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure II”.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, In our opinion, the 
managerial remuneration for the year ended 31st March 2020, has been paid/provided 
by the company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read 
with Schedule V of the Act.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2020 on its 
financial position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 39 to the 
standalone financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contract including derivatives contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses; and 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

For Ravi Sharma & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 015143C

(CA Paras Bhatia)
Partner
M.No.:418196
UDIN:

Date:31stJuly, 2020
Place: Udaipur
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Annexure I to the Independent Auditors' Report of Pacific Industries Limited 

With reference to the Annexure I referred to in the Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the 
Pacific Industries Limited on the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, 
we report the following:

(i)  (a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including 
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) All the assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and 
there is a regular program of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having 
regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets, No material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company except 
the land having cost of Rs. 64.76 Lacs in Bangalore held in the name of past director of 
the company.

(ii) (a) The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the management. In our 
opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(b) The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book 
records were not material and have been properly dealt with in the books of accounts.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of inventory, the company is maintaining proper 
records of inventory. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as 
compared to book records were not material and have been properly dealt with in the 
books of accounts.

(iii) The Company has granted loans to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register 
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act').

(a) in our opinion the terms and conditions of grant of such loans are not, prima facie, 
prejudicial to the Company's interest.

(B) the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and 
the repayment/receipts of the principal amount and the interest are regular;

(c) there is no overdue amount in respect of loans granted to such companies.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has 
complied with the provisions of section 185 and I86 of the Companies Act, 2013 In respect of 
loans, investments, guarantees, and security,
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(v)  The Company has not accepted any deposits from the Public and hence the directives issued by 
the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant 
provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the 
deposits accepted from the public are not applicable

(vi) According to the information & explanation given to us, the Central Government has not 
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in 
respect of manufacture of its products by the company. 

(vii) In respect of statutory dues:

(a) According to the records of the company, undisputed statutory dues including 
Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of 
Customs, Value Added Tax, Cess, Goods and Service tax and other material statutory 
dues have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the 
appropriate authorities except for a few delays. According to the information and 
explanations given to us, no undisputed amount payable in respect of the aforesaid due 
were outstanding as at March 31, 2020 for a period of more than six months from the 
date of becoming payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no pending dues of 
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, 
Goods and service tax or Cess which are not deposited on account of dispute except 
Following: -
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(viii) According to information and explanation given to us by the management, as on balance 
sheet date the company is not in default w.r.t. repayment of loans and borrowings to a 
financial institutions, banks or government, further the company has not issued any 
debentures. 

(ix) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 
by the management during the year under review, the company has not raised moneys by 
way of initial public offer or further public offer including debt instruments. To the best of 
our knowledge and belief and according to the Information and Explanation given to us, 
term loans availed by the company were prima facie applied by the company during the 
year for the purpose for which the loan were Obtained.   

(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has 
been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has paid / provided managerial 
remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of 
Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

(xii) According to information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the Company is not 
a Nidhi Company as prescribed in Section 406 of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of 
clause 4 (xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) According to information and explanations given to us and based on examination of the 
records of the company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 
section 177 and 188 of the Act, and the details of such transactions have been disclosed in 
the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) According to information and explanations given to us and based on examination of the 
records of the company, the company has made private placement of shares by making a 
Right Issue during the year under review. During the year Company has issued 20,94,825 
number of Equity shares @ Rs.119 (including per share premium of Rs. 109 per share 
having face value of Rs.10/- each) under the Right Issue scheme. Consequently, the issued 
& Paid up Capital of the Company stands increase to Rs.34,463,250 w.e.f 26th August, 
2019. The Amount raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds were 
raised.

(xv) According to information and explanations given to us and based on examination of the 
records of the company, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.
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(xvi) According to information and explanations given to us, the company is not required to be 
registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the 
provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not 
commented upon.

For Ravi Sharma & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 015143C

(CA Paras Bhatia)
Partner
M.No.:418196
UDIN: 20418196AAAAI6679

Date:31stJuly 2020
Place: Udaipur
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Annexure II to the Independent Auditors' Report of Pacific Industries Limited 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
In conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company as of and 
for the year ended March 31, 2020, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of Pacific Industries Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”), which is a company 
incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Board of Directors of the company are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR and the Guidance Note 
issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
IFCoFR were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that:
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1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and  

3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Ravi Sharma & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 015143C

(CA Paras Bhatia)
Partner
M.No.:418196
UDIN: 20418196AAAAI6679

Date:31stJuly, 2020
Place: Udaipur
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Annexure I to the Independent Auditors' Report of Pacific Industries Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the 
year ended 31 March 2020, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements of Pacific Industries Ltd (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding 
Company”) and such companies incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 2013 which are its 
subsidiary companies as of that date.
In our opinion, the Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India which are its subsidiary 
companies have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 
31 March 2020, based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements criteria established by such companies considering the essential components of such 
internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The respective Company's management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to financial statements based on the criteria 
established by the respective Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies, 
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”).

Auditors' Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR and the Guidance Note 
issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
IFCoFR were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other 
auditors of the relevant subsidiary companies, in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters 
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paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal 
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes 
those policies and procedures that:
1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 

3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate

Other Matters 
Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of 
the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates 
to six subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding 
reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.
For Ravi Sharma & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 015143C

(Paras Bhatia)
Partner
M.No.: 418196
UDIN:

Date: 31st July, 2020
Place: Udaipur
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Notes to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2020

Note 1 Corporate Information
Pacific Industries Limited (the company) is a public company domiciled in India and 
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. Its shares are listed on 
Bombay Stock Exchange in India. The company is engaged in the export, manufacturing & 
trading of Granite tiles & slabs and Quartz Slabs and other goods and commission activities.

Note 2 Significant accounting policies
The following are the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years 
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation
In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the 
Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 with effect from April 01, 2016. 
These financial statements  have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards ("Ind AS") as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 
read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant 
amendment rules issued thereafter.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 were approved by the Board of 
Directors and authorized for issue on  31st July 2020.

2.2   Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for 
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of each 
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally 
based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair 
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued 
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard 
requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

2.3  Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees ("INR") which is the Company's 
presentation currency and the functional currency for its operations. All financial
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information presented in INR has been rounded to the nearest lakhs with two decimal 
places unless stated otherwise.

2.4  Use of Estimates and Judgements
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires 
management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments 
and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
the accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and 
future periods affected. 

Significant judgments and estimates relating to carrying value of assets and liabilities 
include useful lives of Property,  plant and equipment , impairment of Property,  plant and 
equipment , investments , provision for employee benefits and other provisions, 
recoverability of deferred tax assets, commitments and contingencies.

2.5  Classification of Assets & Liabilities as Current & Non-Current
All Assets and Liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the 
Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the 
Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of product & activities of the Company and their 
realization in cash and cash equivalent, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 
12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and 
liabilities.

2.6  Recognition of Revenue and Expenditure
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized on transfer of control of promised 
goods or services to a customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the 
Company is expected to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of 
transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance 
obligation.The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered iss net of variable 
consideration on account of various discounts and schemes offered by the Company as part 
of the contract.This variable consideration is estimated based on the expected value of 
outflow. Revenue (net of variable consideration) is recognized only to the extent that it is 
highly probable that the amount will not be subject to significant reversal when 
uncertainty relating to its recognition is resolved. 
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2.6.1 Sale of Goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised, when the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership of the goods have been transferred to the buyer. No revenue is recognised if 
there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the amount due, associated costs 
or the possible return of goods.

2.6.2 Interest
Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount 
outstanding and the effective interest rate method. Interest income is included under the 
head "Other Income" in statement of profit and loss.

2.6.3 Expenses
All expenses are charged in statement of profit and loss as and when they are incurred.

2.7  Property, Plant & Equipment
Property, Plant & Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost including the cost directly 
attributable for bringing the asset to the location and conditions necessary for it to be 
capable of operating in the manner intended by the management. After the initial 
recognition the property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of 
property, plant and equipment is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.  When 
significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the 
company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Subsequent 
expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the company and 
the costs to the item can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when incurred.

Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation 
/ under development as at the balance sheet date.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on a Written Down Value  basis except for New Quartz Plant 
(Taanj), where Depreciation is provided on Straight Line method over the estimated useful 
life of all the assets as prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. The residual 
values, useful life and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are 
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

 
2.8  Inventory
Inventories consists of Raw Material, Work In Progress, Finished Goods , Scrap & Stores & 
Spares.

104

INDUSTRIES LIMITED
st

31  Annual Report 2019-20



Notes to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2020

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is determined on 
weighted average basis. 

Raw materials & Stores & Spares: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred 
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition on the weighted average 
basis. 

Finished goods and work in progress: Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and 
a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity on a 
weighted average basis. Cost of finished goods includes other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less 
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.9  Employee benefits
a)  Short Term Employee Benefits
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are 
classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages etc. and the 
expected cost of ex-gratia are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the 
related service. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid when there is a 
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service 
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. 

b)  Defined Contribution Plan
The Company makes defined contribution to Provident Fund managed by Government 
Authorities, which are accounted on accrual basis as expenses in the statement of Profit 
and Loss. The Company has no obligation other than the contribution payable to the 
provident fund.

c)  Defined Benefit Plan
The employees’ gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of the 
obligation under such defined benefit plans is determined based on an independent 
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, carried out as at balance sheet 
date. The obligation determined as aforesaid less the fair value of the Plan assets is 
reported as a liability or assets as of the reporting date. Actuarial gain or losses are 
recognised immediately in the Other Comprehensive Income and reflected in retained 
earnings and will not be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.

d)  Other Long-Term Benefits
Provision for other long term benefits in the form of long term compensated absences 
(leave encashment) are accounted for on the basis as if it becomes due for payment on the 
last day of accounting year. 
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2.10  Income Tax
Tax expenses comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in Statement of profit 
and loss except to the extent it relates to the items recognised directly in equity or in OCI.

Current tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable on the taxable income or loss for the year 
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is 
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations 
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions 
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. 
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set 
it off the recognised amounts and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability 
on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in 
the computation of taxable profit under Income tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. 
However, in case of temporary differences that arise from initial recognition of assets or 
liabilities in a transaction (other than business combination) that affect neither the taxable 
profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized. Also, for 
temporary differences if any that may arise from initial recognition of goodwill, deferred 
tax liabilities are not recognized.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to 
the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those 
deductible temporary difference can be utilized. In case of temporary differences that 
arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction (other than business 
combination) that affect neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax 
assets are not recognized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period 
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be 
available to allow the benefits of part or all of such deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable 
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or 
settled.
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Presentation of current and deferred tax:
Current and deferred tax are recognized as income or an expense in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in Other Comprehensive 
Income, in which case, the current and deferred tax income/expense are recognized in 
Other Comprehensive Income.

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally 
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on 
a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. In case of 
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are offset if the Company has a 
legally enforceable right to set off corresponding current tax assets against current tax 
liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes 
levied by the same tax authority on the Company.

2.11  Lease
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. 
That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a 
period of time in exchange for consideration.

As a lessee
a) Right-of-use assets
The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. 
the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at 
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any 
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of 
lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or 
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are 
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated 
useful lives of the assets. If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the 
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is 
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. 

b) Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities 
measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The 
lease payments primarily comprise of fixed payments. In calculating the present value of 
lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease 
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily 
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased 
to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
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c) Short-term leases and leases of low value assets 
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases 
of office spaces and certain equipment(i.e. those leases that have a lease term of 12 
months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchaseoption). It also 
applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment 
that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of 
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

As a lessor 
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising 
is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in 
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the 
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

2.12  Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

Contingent Liability is disclosed in case of a present obligation arising from past events, 
when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation 
or where no reliable estimate is possible. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in 
financial statements but are disclosed in notes.

Contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the entity.  Contingent assets are not recognised in 
financial statements and are disclosed in notes.

2.13 Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at exchange rates prevailing at the date of 
transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during 
the year are recognised in the statement of profit and loss of the year.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies which are outstanding, as 
at the reporting date are translated at the closing exchange rates and the resultant 
exchange differences are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are 
recognised using the exchange rate at date of initial transactions, are not retranslated.
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In respect of forward contracts, the premium or discount on these contracts is recognized 
as income or expenditure over the period of the contract. Any profit or loss arising on the 
cancellation or the renewal of such contracts is recognized as income or expense for the 
year.

2.14  Impairment  
Non-financial assets
The carrying amount of non- financial assets other than inventories are assessed at each 
reporting date to ascertain whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such 
indication exists then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is 
recognised as an expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss, for the amount by which the 
asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the 
higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Value in use is ascertained 
through discounting of estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects the 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets. 
For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels into cash 
generating units for which there are separately identifiable cash flows.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to 
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that 
asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment had been recognised.

Financial assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that 
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of 
financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a 
result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an 
incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows 
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

2.15  Government Grant
Government grants are recognised when there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will 
be received and all attached conditions will be complied with. Government grants relating 
to an expense item is recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the period 
necessary to match them with costs that they are intended to compensate are expensed. 
Government grants relating to asset is recognised as income in equal amounts  over the 
useful life of the asset.

2.16  Earning Per Share (EPS)
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) after tax by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is 
computed by dividing the profit/(loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and
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other charges to expense or income relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the 
weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share 
and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the 
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.17  Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, as set out in Ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash 
Flows', whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-
cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments 
and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash 
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

2.18  Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and 
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to 
an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.19  Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a 
qualifying asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its 
intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset, until such time as the 
assets are substantially ready for the intended use or sale. Interest income earned on 
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying 
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. The borrowing costs 
other than attributable to qualifying assets are recognised in the profit or loss in the period 
in which they incurred.

2.20  Financial Instruments
The company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are 
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets 
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from 
the fair value of the financial asset or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial 
recognition. Transactions costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets 
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in 
Statement of Profit and loss.

2.21.1 Financial assets
All regular way purchases or sale of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a 
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sale of financial assets 
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or 
convention in the market place. All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured 
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in their entirety at either amortized cost or fair value, depending on the classification of 
the financial assets.

Classification of Financial Assets
(i)  Financial assets carried at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business 
model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and 
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

(ii)  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both 
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms 
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

(iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories is subsequently fair 
valued through profit or loss. 

(iv)    Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective 
interest rate method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the 
balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short 
maturity of these instruments.

(v)   Equity instrument
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of 
the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the 
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

c)  Derecognition
The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash 
flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer 
qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial 
liability) is derecognized from the company's balance sheet when the obligation 
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

d)     Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised 
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle 
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the liabilities simultaneously.

2.21  Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting 
provided to the chief operating decision maker and the Board of Directors of the company 
considers and maintains Stones - Granite and Quartz, trading other than Granite & Quartz 
& Other services as the Business Segments of the Company.

2.22  Fair Value Measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair 
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would 
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their 
economic best interest.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial 
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on 
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement is unobservable.

2.23  Recent accounting pronouncements 
New and amended standards
The Company applied Ind AS 116 – Leases (‘Ind AS 116’) for the first time. The nature and 
effect of the changes as a result of adoption of this new accounting standard is described 
below.

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in year ended March 
2020, but do not have an impact on the standalone financial statements of the Company. 
The Company has not early adopted any standards or amendments that have been issued 
but are not yet effective.

Ind AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17 Leases including its appendices (Appendix C of Ind AS 17 
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, Appendix A of Ind AS 17 Operating 
Leases-Incentives and Appendix B of Ind AS 17 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
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 Involving the Legal Form of a Lease). The standard sets out the principles for the 
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to 
recognise most leases on the Balance Sheet.

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from Ind AS 17. Lessors will 
continue to classify leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in 
Ind AS 17. Therefore, Ind AS 116 does not have an impact for leases where the Company is 
the lessor.

The Company adopted Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective method of adoption, 
with the date of initial application on 1 April 2019. The Company elected to use the 
transition practical expedient to not reassess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at 
1 April 2019. Instead, the Company applied the standard only to contracts that were 
previously identified as leases applying Ind AS 17 and Appendix C of Ind AS 17 at the date of 
initial application. The Company also elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease 
contracts that, at the commencement date, have a lease term of 12 months or less and do 
not contain a purchase option (short-term leases), and lease contracts for which the 
underlying asset is of low value (low-value assets).

Based on the Company’s evaluation, the standard did not have significant impact on the 
financial statements of the Company.
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Independent Auditor's Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

To 

The Members of 

PACIFIC INDUSTRIES LIMITED,

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Pacific Industries Limited (hereinafter 
referred to as the (“Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries 
together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 
2020, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), 
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated 
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us “except 
for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section” and based on the 
consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries referred 
to below in the Other Matter section below, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true 
and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the 
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended ('Ind AS') and 
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the 
Group as at 31st March, 2019, and their consolidated profit, their consolidated total comprehensive 
income, their consolidated cash flows and their consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on 
that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

Refer Note No. 38 of Notes on Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements regarding confirmation & 
reconciliation of various Debit and Credit balances appearing under various heads & non-provision 
of exchange fluctuation w.r.t certain old balances. Final reconciliations/confirmations of the same 
may affect our disclosure.

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards 
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements under the 
provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that 

136

INDUSTRIES LIMITED
st

31  Annual Report 2019-20



the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, these 
consolidated financial results include the financial results of the following entities:

a. Gist Minerals Technologies Limited (Subsidiary) 

b. Gaze Fashion trade Limited (Subsidiary)

c. Radhika Vyapaar Private Limited (Step Down Subsidiary)

d. Biswas Solar Instrument Private Limited (Step Down Subsidiary)

e. Blood Hound Security Company Private Limited (Step Down Subsidiary)

f. Saha Coloured & Flavour Spirit Manufacturer Private Limited (Step Down Subsidiary)

Emphasis of Matter Paragraph

We invite attention to Note No-44 to the financial statements regarding uncertainties associated with 
the COVID-19 pandemic and impact assessment made by the company on its business and financial 
statements for the year ended 31st March 2020, the said assessment made by the management is highly 
dependent upon how the circumstances evolve in subsequent periods.

Our Opinion is not modified on the above matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters ('KAM') are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the Consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon 
(“Other Information”) 

The Holding Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. 
The other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company's annual report, but 
does not include the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. These reports are expected 
to be made available to us.
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements.

The Holding Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in 
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements 
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial 
performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated 
changes in equity of the Group in accordance with Ind AS and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are 
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and its subsidiaries for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of 
the Consolidated Financial Statements by the Directors of the Holding Company , as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective management and Board of Directors 
of the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each Company to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The respective Board of Directors of the 
companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each 
Company

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statement

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. As part of an audit in 
accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 

�Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
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obtain evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. 

�Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls. 

�Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by.

�Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going 
concern.

�Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements 
represent the   underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

�Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such
entities or business activities  within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements, of which we are the independent auditors. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the audit of financial information of such entities. For the other 
entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other 
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance 
of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our 
responsibilities in this regard are further described in para (a) of the section titled 'Other Matters' 
in this audit report.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in 
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the 
consolidated financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of audit reports of the 
other auditors referred to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements
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We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities 
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication.    

Other Matters 

We did not audit the financial statements of six subsidiaries and step down Subsidiaries, whose 
financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 27823.93 Lacs as at 31 March 2020, total revenues of 
Rs.1835.87 Lacs and total net profit after tax (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 90.95 Lakhs for 
the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial 
statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the 
management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the 
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-section 
(3) of section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the 
audit reports of the other auditors. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our 
report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above 
matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the 
financial statements certified by the management.

Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement

1. The report does not include a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 & 4 of the 
companies (Auditor`s Report) Order, 2016 issued by the Central Government of India in terms of 
sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, since in our opinion the said order is not applicable to 
the presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements.

2. (A) As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements. 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors. 
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c. The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including 
other comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the 
consolidated statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated 
financial statement.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS 
specified under section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding 
Company as on 31 March 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding 
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, none of the 
directors of the Group companies, is disqualified as on 31 March 2020 from being appointed 
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.   

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31st March 2020, has been 
paid/provided by the company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 
197 read with Schedule V of the Act.

h.   With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the 
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: i. T h e  
consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 
2019 on the consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 39 to the consolidated 
financial statements; 

ii. The Company and its Subsidiaries did not have any long-term contract including 
derivatives contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses; and 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary 
companies incorporated in India. 

For Ravi Sharma & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 015143C

(CA Paras Bhatia)
Partner
M.No. 418196
UDIN: 20418196AAAACL1575

Date: 31st July, 2020
Place: Udaipur
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Annexure I to the Independent Auditors' Report of Pacific Industries Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the 
year ended 31 March 2020, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements of Pacific Industries Ltd (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding 
Company”) and such companies incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 2013 which are its 
subsidiary companies as of that date.

In our opinion, the Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India which are its subsidiary 
companies have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 
31 March 2020, based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements criteria established by such companies considering the essential components of such 
internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The respective Company's management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to financial statements based on the criteria 
established by the respective Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies, 
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”).

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR and the Guidance Note 
issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
IFCoFR were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other 
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auditors of the relevant subsidiary companies, in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters 
paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal 
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes 
those policies and procedures that:

1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 

3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on 
the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate

Other Matters 

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of 
the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates 
to six subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding 
reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

For Ravi Sharma & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 015143C

(Paras Bhatia)
Partner
M.No.: 418196
UDIN: 20418196AAAACL1575
Date: 31st July, 2020
Place: Udaipur
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(Rupees in Lakhs)

UDIN: 20418196AAAACL1575
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UDIN: 20418196AAAACL1575
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UDIN: 20418196AAAACL1575
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Notes to the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2020

Note 1 Corporate Information
Pacific Industries Limited (the company) is a public company domiciled in India and 
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. Its shares are listed on 
Bombay Stock Exchange in India. The company is engaged in the export, manufacturing & 
trading of Granite tiles & slabs and Quartz Slabs and other goods and commission activities.

Note 2 Significant accounting policies
The following are the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years 
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation
In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the 
Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 with effect from April 01, 2016. 
These financial statements  have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards ("Ind AS") as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 
read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant 
amendment rules issued thereafter.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 were approved by the Board of 
Directors and authorized for issue on  31st July 2020.

2.2   Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for 
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of each 
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally 
based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair 
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued 
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard 
requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

2.3  Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees ("INR") which is the Company's 
presentation currency and the functional currency for its operations. All financial 
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Notes to the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2020

information presented in INR has been rounded to the nearest lakhs with two decimal 
places unless stated otherwise.

2.4  Use of Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires 
management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments 
and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
the accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and 
future periods affected. 

Significant judgments and estimates relating to carrying value of assets and liabilities 
include useful lives of Property,  plant and equipment , impairment of Property,  plant and 
equipment , investments , provision for employee benefits and other provisions, 
recoverability of deferred tax assets, commitments and contingencies.

2.5  Classification of Assets & Liabilities as Current & Non-Current
All Assets and Liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the 
Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the 
Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of product & activities of the Company and their 
realization in cash and cash equivalent, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 
12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and 
liabilities.

2.6  Recognition of Revenue and Expenditure
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized on transfer of control of promised 
goods or services to a customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the 
Company is expected to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of 
transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance 
obligation.The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered iss net of variable 
consideration on account of various discounts and schemes offered by the Company as part 
of the contract.This variable consideration is estimated based on the expected value of 
outflow. Revenue (net of variable consideration) is recognized only to the extent that it is 
highly probable that the amount will not be subject to significant reversal when 
uncertainty relating to its recognition is resolved. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2020

2.6.1 Sale of Goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised, when the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership of the goods have been transferred to the buyer. No revenue is recognised if 
there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the amount due, associated costs 
or the possible return of goods.

2.6.2 Interest
Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount 
outstanding and the effective interest rate method. Interest income is included under the 
head "Other Income" in statement of profit and loss.

2.6.3 Expenses
All expenses are charged in statement of profit and loss as and when they are incurred.

2.7  Property, Plant & Equipment
Property, Plant & Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost including the cost directly 
attributable for bringing the asset to the location and conditions necessary for it to be 
capable of operating in the manner intended by the management. After the initial 
recognition the property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of 
property, plant and equipment is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.  When 
significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the 
company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Subsequent 
expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the company and 
the costs to the item can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when incurred.

Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation 
/ under development as at the balance sheet date.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on a Written Down Value  basis except for New Quartz Plant 
(Taanj), where Depreciation is provided on Straight Line method over the estimated useful 
life of all the assets as prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. The residual 
values, useful life and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are 
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

 
2.8  Inventory
Inventories consists of Raw Material, Work In Progress, Finished Goods , Scrap & Stores & 
Spares.

149

INDUSTRIES LIMITED
st

31  Annual Report 2019-20



Notes to the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2020

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is determined on 
weighted average basis. 

Raw materials & Stores & Spares: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred 
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition on the weighted average 
basis. 

Finished goods and work in progress: Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and 
a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity on a 
weighted average basis. Cost of finished goods includes other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less 
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.9  Employee benefits
a)  Short Term Employee Benefits
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are 
classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages etc. and the 
expected cost of ex-gratia are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the 
related service. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid when there is a 
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service 
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. 

b)  Defined Contribution Plan
The Company makes defined contribution to Provident Fund managed by Government 
Authorities, which are accounted on accrual basis as expenses in the statement of Profit 
and Loss. The Company has no obligation other than the contribution payable to the 
provident fund.

c)  Defined Benefit Plan
The employees’ gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of the 
obligation under such defined benefit plans is determined based on an independent 
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, carried out as at balance sheet 
date. The obligation determined as aforesaid less the fair value of the Plan assets is 
reported as a liability or assets as of the reporting date. Actuarial gain or losses are 
recognised immediately in the Other Comprehensive Income and reflected in retained 
earnings and will not be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.

d)  Other Long-Term Benefits
Provision for other long term benefits in the form of long term compensated absences 
(leave encashment) are accounted for on the basis as if it becomes due for payment on the 
last day of accounting year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2020

2.10  Income Tax
Tax expenses comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in Statement of profit 
and loss except to the extent it relates to the items recognised directly in equity or in 
OCI.

Current tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable on the taxable income or loss for the year 
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is 
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations 
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions 
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. 
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set 
it off the recognised amounts and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability 
on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in 
the computation of taxable profit under Income tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. 
However, in case of temporary differences that arise from initial recognition of assets or 
liabilities in a transaction (other than business combination) that affect neither the taxable 
profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized. Also, for 
temporary differences if any that may arise from initial recognition of goodwill, deferred 
tax liabilities are not recognized.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to 
the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those 
deductible temporary difference can be utilized. In case of temporary differences that 
arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction (other than business 
combination) that affect neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax 
assets are not recognized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period 
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be 
available to allow the benefits of part or all of such deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable 
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or 
settled.
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Presentation of current and deferred tax:
Current and deferred tax are recognized as income or an expense in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in Other Comprehensive 
Income, in which case, the current and deferred tax income/expense are recognized in 
Other Comprehensive Income.

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally 
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on 
a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. In case of 
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are offset if the Company has a 
legally enforceable right to set off corresponding current tax assets against current tax 
liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes 
levied by the same tax authority on the Company.

2.11  Lease
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. 
That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a 
period of time in exchange for consideration.

As a lessee
a) Right-of-use assets
The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. 
the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at 
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any 
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of 
lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or 
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are 
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated 
useful lives of the assets. If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the 
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is 
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. 

b) Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities 
measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The 
lease payments primarily comprise of fixed payments. In calculating the present value of 
lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease 
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily 
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased 
to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.

c) Short-term leases and leases of low value assets 
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases 
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of office spaces and certain equipment(i.e. those leases that have a lease term of 12 
months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchaseoption). It also 
applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment 
that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of 
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

As a lessor 
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising 
is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in 
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the 
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

2.12  Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

Contingent Liability is disclosed in case of a present obligation arising from past events, 
when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation 
or where no reliable estimate is possible.  Contingent liabilities are not recognised in 
financial statements but are disclosed in notes.

Contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the entity.  Contingent assets are not recognised in 
financial statements and are disclosed in notes.

2.13 Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at exchange rates prevailing at the date of 
transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during 
the year are recognised in the statement of profit and loss of the year.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies which are outstanding, as 
at the reporting date are translated at the closing exchange rates and the resultant 
exchange differences are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are 
recognised using the exchange rate at date of initial transactions, are not retranslated.

In respect of forward contracts, the premium or discount on these contracts is recognized 
as income or expenditure over the period of the contract. Any profit or loss arising on the 
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cancellation or the renewal of such contracts is recognized as income or expense for the 
year.

2.14  Impairment  
Non-financial assets
The carrying amount of non- financial assets other than inventories are assessed at each 
reporting date to ascertain whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such 
indication exists then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is 
recognised as an expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss, for the amount by which the 
asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the 
higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Value in use is ascertained 
through discounting of estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects the 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets. 
For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels into cash 
generating units for which there are separately identifiable cash flows.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to 
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that 
asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment had been recognised.

Financial assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that 
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of 
financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a 
result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an 
incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows 
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

2.15  Government Grant
Government grants are recognised when there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will 
be received and all attached conditions will be complied with. Government grants relating 
to an expense item is recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the period 
necessary to match them with costs that they are intended to compensate are expensed. 
Government grants relating to asset is recognised as income in equal amounts  over the 
useful life of the asset.

2.16  Earning Per Share (EPS)
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) after tax by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is 
computed by dividing the profit/(loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and 
other charges to expense or income relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the 
weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share 
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and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the 
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.17  Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, as set out in Ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash 
Flows', whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-
cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments 
and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash 
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

2.18  Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and 
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to 
an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.19  Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a 
qualifying asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its 
intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset, until such time as the 
assets are substantially ready for the intended use or sale. Interest income earned on 
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying 
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. The borrowing costs 
other than attributable to qualifying assets are recognised in the profit or loss in the period 
in which they incurred.

2.20  Financial Instruments
The company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are 
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets 
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from 
the fair value of the financial asset or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial 
recognition. Transactions costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets 
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in 
Statement of Profit and loss.

2.21.1 Financial assets
All regular way purchases or sale of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a 
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sale of financial assets 
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or 
convention in the market place. All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured 
in their entirety at either amortized cost or fair value, depending on the classification of 
the financial assets.
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Classification of Financial Assets
(i)  Financial assets carried at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business 
model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and 
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

(ii)  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both 
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms 
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

(iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories is subsequently fair 
valued through profit or loss. 

(iv)    Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective 
interest rate method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the 
balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short 
maturity of these instruments.

(v)   Equity instrument
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of 
the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the 
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

c)  Derecognition
The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash 
flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer 
qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial 
liability) is derecognized from the company's balance sheet when the obligation 
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

d)     Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised 
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle 
the liabilities simultaneously.
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2.21  Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting 
provided to the chief operating decision maker and the Board of Directors of the company 
considers and maintains Stones - Granite and Quartz, trading other than Granite & Quartz, 
Investment and Finance & Other services as the Business Segments of the Company.

2.22  Fair Value Measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair 
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would 
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their 
economic best interest.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial 
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on 
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement is unobservable.

2.23  Principles for consolidation 
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the group has control. The group controls an entity 
when the group is exposed to or has right to, variable returns from its involvment with the 
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant 
activities of the entity. Subsidiries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is 
transferred to the group.They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases. The 
acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the 
Group.

The Group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line 
adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, Income and expenses. Inter 
company transcation, balances and unrealised gains on transcation between group 
companies are eliminated. The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared 
using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar 
circumstances.
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2.24  Business combinations
The Group accounts for its business combinations under acquisition method of accounting. 
Acquisition related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The acquiree’s 
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the condition for 
recognition are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date except deferred tax 
assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements, 
which are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12- Income taxes and Ind AS 
19- Employee benefits, respectively.
Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount 
of non-controlling interest in the aquiree, and the fair value of acquirer’s previously held 
equity instrument in the aquiree (if any) over the net of acquisition date fair value of 
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Where the fair value of identifiable 
assets and liabilities exceed the cost of acquisition, after reassessing the fair values of the 
net assets and contingent liabilities, the excess is recognised as capital reserve.

The interest of non-controlling shareholders is initially measured either at fair value or at 
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquirer’s Identifiable Net Assets. 
The choice of measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.

2.25   Recent accounting pronouncements 
New and amended standards
The Company applied Ind AS 116 – Leases (‘Ind AS 116’) for the first time. The nature and 
effect of the changes as a result of adoption of this new accounting standard is described 
below.

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in year ended March 
2020, but do not have an impact on the Consolidated financial statements of the Company. 
The Company has not early adopted any standards or amendments that have been issued 
but are not yet effective.

Ind AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17 Leases including its appendices (Appendix C of Ind AS 17 
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, Appendix A of Ind AS 17 Operating 
Leases-Incentives and Appendix B of Ind AS 17 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions 
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease). The standard sets out the principles for the 
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to 
recognise most leases on the Balance Sheet.

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from Ind AS 17. Lessors will 
continue to classify leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in 
Ind AS 17. Therefore, Ind AS 116 does not have an impact for leases where the Company is 
the lessor.
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The Company adopted Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective method of adoption, 
with the date of initial application on 1 April 2019. The Company elected to use the 
transition practical expedient to not reassess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at 
1 April 2019. Instead, the Company applied the standard only to contracts that were 
previously identified as leases applying Ind AS 17 and Appendix C of Ind AS 17 at the date of 
initial application. The Company also elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease 
contracts that, at the commencement date, have a lease term of 12 months or less and do 
not contain a purchase option (short-term leases), and lease contracts for which the 
underlying asset is of low value (low-value assets).

Based on the Company’s evaluation, the standard did not have significant impact on the 
financial statements of the Company.
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PACIFIC INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Registered Office : Survey No. 13, N.h. 48, Kempalinganahalli Village,    

Nelamangala  Taluk, Bangalore-Karnataka 562123

Tel No. : +91-8027723004 ; Fax : +91-8027723005

Corporate Office:   Village Bedla,P.O. Box 119, Udaipur-313001,

Tel No. +91-294-2440196, 2440388 ; Fax : +91-294-2440780 

Email : pacificinvestor@rediffmail.com.com ; Website :  www.pacificindustriesltd.com            

CIN : L14101KA1989PLC062041

E-COMMUNICATION REGISTRATION FROM

Folio No. (For Physical Shares)               :       __________________________________________________

Name of 1st Registered Holder       :       __________________________________________________

Name(s) of Joint holder(s)       : __________________________________________________

Registered Address       : __________________________________________________

E-Mail ID (to be registered)       : __________________________________________________

Phone No./ Mobile no.       : __________________________________________________

I/We, Shareholder(s) of Pacific Industries Limited agrees to receive communication from the 

company in electronic mode. Please register my/Our above e-mail in your records for sending 

communication through e-mail.

Signature of Shareholder(s) 1. __________________  __2.______________________3.____________________

(as appearing in the Company's records)

Date:

Notes:

1. Shareholder(s) is/are requested to keep the Company informed as and when there is any 

change in the e-mail address.

2. In case, shares are held in electronic from, kindly register your email particulars with your 

Depository Participant.
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Form No. SH-13-Nomination Form

[Pursuant to section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(1) of the 

Companies(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014]

For Attention of Individual shareholders holding Equity shares in Physical Form

Name of the Company:  Pacific Industries Limited

Registered office  of the Company: Survey No. 13, N.h. 48, Kempalinganahalli Village, 

NelamangalaTaluk, Bangalore-Karnataka 562123

Corporate office:  Village Bedla, Udaipur-313001 Rajasthan

I/We _______________________________ the holder(s) of the securities particulars of which are given hereunder wish to make 

nomination and do hereby nominate the following persons in whom shall vest, all the rights in respect of such securities 

in the event of my/our death.
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